
 1 

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Ottawa, Kansas 
 
City Hall – June 13, 2012 
 
The City Planning Commission met at 7:00 p.m. on this date with the following members present and 
participating:  Members Bond, Colbern, Wasko, Maxwell, and Chairperson Jackson.  Absent were 
Members Boyd and Livingston. 
 
Declaration: 
 
Chairperson Jackson asked the Planning Commission Members to make a declaration of any conflict 
of interest or of any Ex parte or outside communication that might influence their ability to hear all 
sides on any item on the agenda so they might come to a fair decision.  There were none. 
 
Public Comments:  There were none. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
 
Member Colbern made a motion to approve the April 25, 2012 study session minutes, and the May 9, 
2012 meeting minutes, seconded by Member Wasko.  All present voted yes. (5-0). 
 
Member Boyd arrived at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Public Hearing Items: 
 
Held a public hearing on the proposed change in the nonconforming use of the property to allow a 
gymnastics facility in an R-1, Low Density Residential District, located at 913 E. Wilson. 
 
Chairperson Jackson opened the public hearing. 
 
Tom Yahl reviewed the memo with the Planning Commission (power point presentation).  Mr. Yahl 
reviewed the parking area and indicated it would approximately hold 23 vehicles at one time, the new 
owners were planning on filling in the pool and raising the ceilings, and that there were be two 
classes per hour with 8 to 10 students per class.  Mr. Yahl stated staff's recommendation is to 
approve the nonconforming use with the following conditions: 

 Any change in ownership or use will require a change in use to be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission. (Consistent with the previously approved conditional use permit) 

 The proposed use shall cease upon the determination by the Planning Commission that it 
detrimental to the surrounding neighborhood. Detrimental impact will be based upon increased 
traffic, parking problems or complaints on impact of the use. 

 Any change in signage associated with the proposed use shall not exceed 32 square feet in 
size. (Consistent with the sign regulations) 

 Hours of operation shall be limited to 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. Monday through Thursday (with no 
private parties after 10 p.m.), 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. Friday and Saturday (with no private parties 
after 11 p.m.), and 12 p.m. to 8 p.m. Sunday (with no private parties after 8 p.m.). (Consistent 
with the previously approved conditional use permit) 

 
Chairperson Jackson asked for public comments. 



 2 

 
David Doemland, prospective owner of the facility, stated there would be a maximum of 16 students 
in the building at one time.  Mr. Doemland also indicated that even their competition classes would 
only have 16 students.  Mr. Doemland said they would be doing the concrete and heating and air 
modifications, but the ceiling would be done at a later date. 
 
Member Livingston arrived at 7:10 p.m. 
 
Bob Redeker, 833 E. Wilson, stated he was against the conditional use when it was allowed, and that 
when it was in business the neighbors were having to put up with noise, lights from cars, lights being 
left on in the building, parties, and traffic problems.  He also indicated that maintenance of the 
building and property was minimal.  Mr. Redeker stated he would like the hours to be limited to 8:00 
p.m. every day of the week as there are those who get up early in the morning for work, even on the 
weekends. 
 
Don Sellens, 903 E. Wilson, stated he lives next door to the facility and has to put up with lights being 
left on at night, loud music with windows open, traffic problems, and there was no snow removal done 
during the last snow.  Mr. Sellens stated he wondered if the city could support another gymnastics 
facility.  He also indicated he would like to see the facility fenced. 
 
Joe Ebeck, stated they have owned the facility since 2008 and this is the first he has heard of any 
complaints about the facility.  Mr. Ebeck indicated he mows the property every two weeks and that 
there has been no electricity to the facility for the last year and a half.  Mr. Ebeck indicated this would 
be a great facility for the Doemlan's and the property would be well kept. 
 
Robert Clover, 911 E. Wilson, stated he had concerns about trash, the parking, and kids being on 
their property. 
 
David Doemland, stated the facility they run teaches gymnastics to kids to a national level, and he 
would be happy to talk to any of the neighbors about their concerns. 
 
Wynndee Lee indicated staff did not received any complaints about snow removal and, if had, the 
owner would have been contacted.  Mrs. Lee stated there were problems with the original owner of 
the property about noise and lights, but had not heard about any with the current owner when they 
were operating it at a pool. 
 
Member Bond asked if the late hours were necessary. 
 
David Doemland, stated they would be hiring someone to do snow removal and mowing as they live 
in Emporia and they want to be good neighbors.  He also indicated as they will have heat and air 
conditioning in the building, the doors and windows would be kept closed and there would be no 
music playing as they are instructing their students on what to do and they need to be able to hear 
them. 
 
Wynndee Lee indicated the Planning Commission might want to condition that within one year that 
shrubs are planted around the parking area. 
 
Chairperson Jackson asked if there were any more public comments, there were none. 
 
Chairperson Jackson closed the public hearing. 
 



 3 

Chairperson Jackson asked for comments from the Planning Commission members.  There was 
discussion about the hours and about planting shrubs around the parking lot.  The Planning 
Commission amended the conditions to change the hours from 8 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. Monday through 
Saturday, 12 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. on Sunday, and to add the planting of shrubs on the west side of the 
parking within one year after approval of the nonconforming use. 
 
Member Maxwell stated he would be voting against this motion as he feels there should have never 
been a commercial use allowed to be developed in a residential area. 
 
Member Bond made a motion to recommend to the City Commission to approve the proposed 
change in the nonconforming us of the property to allow a gymnastics facility in an R-1 Low Density 
Residential District, located at 913 E. Wilson with the following conditions: (1) Any change in 
ownership or use will require the change in use to be reviewed by the Planning Commission; (2) The 
proposed use shall cease upon the determination by the Planning Commission that it is  detrimental 
to the surrounding neighborhood.  Detrimental impact will be based upon increased traffic, parking 
problems or complaints on impact of the use; (3) Any change in signage associated with the 
proposed use shall not exceed 32 square feet in size; (4) Hours of operation shall be limited to 8 a.m. 
to 8:30 p.m. Monday through Saturday, and 12 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. on Sunday; (5) Shrubs need to be 
planted on the west side of the parking lot within one year after approval , seconded by Member 
Boyd.  The motion was considered and Member Bond, yes; Member Maxwell, no; Member Boyd, yes; 
Member Wasko, yes; Member Livingston, yes; Member Colbern, yes; Chairperson Jackson, yes.  
Motion passed by a 6-1 vote. 
 
Held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to Article 27, Sign Regulations, Section 27-4, 
General Standards, and Section 27-8, Prohibited Signs. 
 
Chairperson Jackson opened the public hearing. 
 
Tom Yahl reviewed the memo with the Planning Commission (power point presentation). 
 
Wynndee Lee stated the sign regulations have change over the years with the changing of the times, 
at one time certain signs were not allowed but are permitted today such as projecting, A-frame, now 
electronic message centers. 
 
Chairperson Jackson asked if there were any public comments. 
 
Cody, Daktronics, reviewed with the Planning Commission how the proposed electronic sign RMH is 
proposing would work (power point presentation).  
 
Larry Fleix, Administrator for Ransom Memorial Hospital, reviewed with the Planning Commission the 
type of messages they would like to place on the electronic message center, (power point 
presentation).  Mr. Fleix indicated the messages would be a single, static slide at one time. 
 
Rick Hammond, Coffelt Sign from Emporia stated they also reviewed the traffic studies and found 
with the 3 minute delay on these type of signs, there has been less traffic problems with these type of 
signs. 
 
Larry Walrod state the County Commissioners applauded the Planning Commission for the review on 
these type of signs.  Mr. Walrod indicated the County Commissioners did have some issues 
concerning the UGA, and would present those to the City Commission once the Planning 
Commission has made their recommendation. 



 4 

 
Chairperson Jackson asked if there were any more public comments, there were none. 
 
Chairperson Jackson closed the public hearing. 
 
Chairperson Jackson asked the Planning Commissioners if they had any comments or concerns. 
 
Member Colbern asked if only the signs in color were a problem. 
 
Member Wasko asked if the messages for the RMH sign would just be slides.  Larry Fleix stated yes. 
 
Other discussion was held on color and animation.  It was determined that the color slides would be 
okay however they did not want images to move or be animated. 
 
Member Livingston asked about neon signs.  Wynndee Lee indicated this only pertained to electronic 
message signs. 
 
The Planning Commission struck number 5 under letter D from the amendments being proposed. 
 
Member Livingston made a motion to recommend to the City Commission to approve the proposed 
amendments to Article 27, Sign Regulations, Section 27-4, General Standards, and Section 27-8, 
Prohibited Signs as amended, seconded by Member Colbern.  The motion was considered and 
Member Maxwell, yes; Member Boyd, yes; Member Wasko, yes; Member Livingston, yes; Member 
Colbern, yes; Member Bond, Chairperson Jackson, yes.  The motion passed by a 7-0 vote. 
 
Other Items:  There were none. 
 
Announcements:  The next regularly scheduled Planning Commission study session is Wednesday, 
June 27, 2012 at noon and the next regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting is 
Wednesday, July 11, 2012 at 7 p.m.  
 
Adjournment:  Member Bond made a motion to adjourn.  Chairperson Jackson adjourned the 
meeting at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, Wynndee Lee, AICP 
Director of Planning & Codes Department 

 


